
PROSPECTUS

relating to:

Cell Shares of PIM Capital Ltd PCC

(a protected cell company incorporated with limited liability under the laws of Mauritius)

IMPORTANT

This Prospectus (this "**Prospectus**") is distributed upon request in connection with an offering of the Cell Shares, none of which will be issued to any person other than a person to whom the Prospectus is sent to. No person receiving a copy of the Prospectus in any territory may treat the same as constituting an invitation to him, unless in the relevant territory such an invitation could lawfully be made to him without compliance with any registration or other legal requirements or where such registration or other legal requirements have been complied with.

No application has been made to any stock exchange for the listing of the Cell Shares on a stock exchange. No Prospectus has been registered in any jurisdiction, other than with the Financial Services Commission in Mauritius, in connection with the offer for subscription of the Cell Shares.

IF YOU ARE IN DOUBT AS TO THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS, YOU SHOULD CONSULT PIM CAPITAL FUND SERVICES.

PRELIMINARY

The directors of PIM Capital Ltd PCC (the "Company"), whose names appear on page 16 (the "Directors"), accept responsibility for the information contained in the Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information contained in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. Unless otherwise indicated herein, the opinions expressed in this document are those of the Directors.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in the Prospectus, in connection with the placing of cell shares of the Company ("Cell Shares") and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon. Neither the delivery of the Prospectus nor the allotment or issue of Cell Shares shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Company, or in any of the other matters referred to in the Prospectus, since the date hereof.

No action has been taken to permit distribution of the Prospectus in any jurisdiction where such action is required to be taken. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

This Prospectus may not be forwarded or distributed to any other person and may not be reproduced in any manner whatsoever. Any forwarding distribution or reproduction of this document in whole or in part is unauthorized. Failure to comply with this directive may result in a violation of the applicable laws of Mauritius and other jurisdictions.

Under no circumstances shall the Prospectus constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the securities being offered, in any jurisdiction where it would be illegal to offer to sell or offer to buy securities. Recipients of the Prospectus who intend to subscribe for or purchase Cell Shares are reminded that any subscription or purchase may only be made on the basis of the information contained in the Prospectus. The final copy of the Prospectus will be available from the registered office of the Company and from the fund manager of the Company.

Confirmation of your representation: This Prospectus is being sent at your request and by accepting the e-mail or hard copy and accessing the Prospectus, you shall be deemed to have represented to us that you consent to delivery of the Prospectus by electronic transmission.

You are reminded that the Prospectus has been delivered to you on the basis that you are a person into whose possession the Prospectus may be lawfully delivered, and you may not, nor are you authorised to, deliver the Prospectus to any other person.

You are reminded that documents transmitted via this medium may be altered or changed during the process of electronic transmission and consequently neither the Company or the CIS Manager of the Company or any person appointed by it to distribute the Prospectus nor any person who controls any of them nor any director, officer, employee nor agent of it or affiliate of any such person accepts any liability or responsibility whatsoever in respect of any difference between the Prospectus distributed to you in electronic format and the hard copy version made available to you on request from the Fund Manager of the Company or its appointed representatives.

INVESTORS IN THE COMPANY ARE NOT PROTECTED BY ANY STATUTORY COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS IN MAURITIUS IN THE EVENT OF THE COMPANY'S FAILURE.

THE MAURITIUS FINANCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION DOES NOT VOUCH FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF THE COMPANY OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED WITH REGARD TO IT.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS, PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD NOT TREAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT AS ADVICE RELATING TO INVESTMENT, LEGAL OR TAXATION MATTERS AND MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN LEGAL COUNSEL AND ACCOUNTANTS OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVES AS TO LEGAL, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE COMPANY AND INVESTMENT THEREIN.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS' ATTENTION IS DRAWN TO "RISK FACTORS" on page 32.

DATED: 01 MARCH 2024

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements about the Company that are, by their nature, subject to significant risks and uncertainties. These forward-looking statements include statements relating to:

- the Company's business and operating strategies;
- the Company's capital expenditure and investment plans;
- the amount and nature of, and potential for, future development of the Company's business;
- the Company's operations and business prospects;
- various business opportunities that the Company may pursue;
- the financial information regarding the Company;
- · the regulatory environment relating to the Company; and
- other factors beyond our control.

All statements, other than statements of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by such terminology as "may", "will", "should", "could", "would", "expect", "intend", "plan", "anticipate", "going forward", "ought to", "seek", "project", "forecast", "believe", "estimate", "predict", "potential" or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Such statements reflect the current views of the fund manager of the Company as advised by them to the Directors with respect to future events, operations, results, liquidity and capital resources and are not guarantees of future performance and some of which may not materialize or may change. Although the Directors believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, they cannot assure you that those expectations will prove to be correct, and you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements. In addition, unanticipated events may adversely affect the actual results achieved. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations are disclosed under the section entitled "Risk Factors" in the Prospectus. You should bear in mind that any forward-looking statement made in this document or elsewhere is applicable only at the date on which such forward-looking statement is made. Except as required by law, the Directors are under no obligation to, and may not, update or otherwise revise any forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise after the date of the Prospectus. All forward-looking statements contained in the Prospectus are qualified by reference to the cautionary statements set out in the Prospectus.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page No
1.	CC	PRPORATE INFORMATION	8
2.	DE	FINITIONS	9
3.	SU	MMARY	11
4.	CC	MPANY INVESTMENT FACTS	12
	0	Investment Objective	12
	0	Investment Strategies	12
	0	Investment Policy and Restrictions	12
	0	Investment Practices	13
	0	Investment in other collective investment schemes	14
	0	Fees	14
	0	Type of investors	14
	0	Fund Supplement	14
	0	Fund Administration	14
	0	Listing	14
5.	PLACEMENT INFORMATION		
	0	Introduction	15
	0	Minimum Holding	15
	0	Financial Period	16
	0	Directors	16
	0	CIS Manager	17
	0	Custodian	18
	0	Company Secretary	19
	0	Auditor	19
	0	Holders of the Core Shares	20
	0	Liquidation	20
	0	Share Issues	21
	0	Rights of the Core Shares	21
	0	Rights of the Cell Shares	21
	0	Transfer of Cell Shares	21
	0	Net Asset Valuation for each Fund	22
	0	Subscription	24
	0	Redemption	26
	0	Subscription and Redemption Prices	29
6.	FE	ES AND EXPENSES	30
	0	Performance Fees	30
	0	Management Fees	30
	0	General Administrator Fees	30
	0	Administration Fees	31
	0	Custodian	31
	0	Directors	32

7.	RISK FACTORS		
	0	General Risk Factors	31
	0	Political & Economic Risks	31
	0	Repatriation of Capital, Dividends, Interest and Other Income Risks	32
	0	Settlement, Clearing and Registration Risks	33
	0	Market Risk	32
	0	Investment in Publicly Traded Securities	32
	0	Inflation	32
	0	Financial Disclosure	33
	0	Counterparty Risk	33
	0	Exchange Control and Currency Risk	33
	0	Geographic Focus Risks	33
	0	Leverage	33
	0	Reliance on the Investment Manager	34
	0	Potential Conflicts of Interest	34
8.	TA	XATION	34
	0	Taxation in Mauritius	35
	0	Withholding taxes	37
	0	Taxation in South Africa	37
9.	GE	NERAL INFORMATION	37
	0	Reports, Accounts and Statements	37
	0	Queries and Complaints	38
	0	Documents	38
10.	PR	IVACY NOTICE	38
11.	DA	ATA PROTECTION	39
12.	DIS	SCLOSURE BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	40
13	ΔD	PENDIX FOR U.S. PERSONS	Δ 1

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Directors of the Company : Shane Edward Peters

Brendan Gallagher Bashir Nabeebokus

Registered office of the Company : C/o GlobalServe Management Limited

Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue,

Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius

Auditors : Moore (Mauritius)

6th Floor, Newton Tower, Sir William Newton

Street, Port Louis, Mauritius

Company Secretary : GlobalServe Management Limited

Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue,

Cybercity Ebene, Mauritius

Tel: (230) 468 7061

Bankers : Afrasia Bank Limited

3rd Floor, NeXTeracom Tower III, Ebene, Mauritius

Investec Bank (Mauritius) Limited

Office 2, Ground Floor, Block 3, The Strand, Beau

Plan, Mauritius

or such banker denoted in the relevant Fund Offer

Document

CIS Manager : PIM Capital Fund Services

Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue,

Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius

Custodian : Peresec International Limited

Suite C3, Hirzel Court, Hirzel Street, GY1 2NN, St.

Peter Port, Guernsey

or such custodian denoted in the relevant Fund

Offer Document

2. **DEFINITIONS**

In this document, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall bear the following meanings respectively: -

"Application Form" : A form, as prescribed by the Manager from time to

time, to be completed on any new subscription of

shares in a cell

"Broker" : Any person duly authorised in the territory that they

operate to provide financial advice with respect to

financial services products to investor

"Business Day" : Monday to Friday, excluding public holidays, when

banks are open for business in South Africa and

Mauritius

"Cell Shares" : Redeemable non-voting shares issued by each Fund

of the Company and carrying the rights attached to such shares pursuant to the terms of issue thereof

"CIS Manager", "Investment

Manager" or "Manager"

PIM Capital Fund Services, a company duly incorporated under the laws of Mauritius with registered office at C/o GlobalServe Management Limited, Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius appointed by the Company to provide investment management and advisory services, distribution services and fund

administration services

"CIS Management Agreement" : The agreement between the CIS Manager and the

Company as amended from time to time

"Company" : PIM Capital Ltd PCC

"Company Secretary" : GlobalServe Management Limited, a company

incorporated under the laws of Mauritius and having its registered office address at Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius

"Constitution" : The constitution of the Company dated 14 February

2018, as may be amended from time to time,

available from the Company Secretary

"Core Shares" : Non-redeemable voting shares of the Company

which are not classified as Cell Shares and carrying the rights attached thereto pursuant to the

Constitution

"Custodian" : Peresec International Limited or such custodian

denoted in the relevant Fund Supplement

"Custodian Agreement" : Agreement between the Company and the

Custodian

"Dealing Day" : Each Business Day or Business Days on which Cell

Shares are issued, transferred, switched and/or redeemed and/or such other Dealing Days as the Directors shall determine and notify to Shareholders in advance provided that such Dealing Days occur at

regular intervals

"Dealing Deadline" : 4pm Mauritius Time / 2pm South African Time

"Distributor" : A Delegate of the CIS Manager appointed to act as

promotor of a Cell or Cells

"Directors" : The directors of the Company

"Dollar" or "US\$" or "USD" : United States Dollar

"FSC" : The Financial Services Commission of Mauritius

"Fund" : A cell of the Company

"Fund Supplement" / "Fund Offer

Document"

: A supplement to the Prospectus issued from time to

time in respect of each Fund

"General Meeting" : A general meeting of the holders of shares of the

Company or of shares of a Fund

"Issue Price" : US\$1.00 / USD 1.00

"Investment Advisor" : Any person duly authorised in the territory that they

operate to provide investment advice and duly appointed by the CIS Manager to provide this service in either a discretionary or non-discretionary

capacity in respect of a Cell or Cells

"Net Asset Value" : The market value of a Fund

"Net Asset Value Per Cell Share" : The Net Asset Value divided by the number of Cell

Shares in issue with respect to a particular Fund

(commonly referred to as the unit price)

"Prospectus" : This prospectus and any Fund Supplement

"Redemption Day" : Any Business Day

"Redemption Dealing Deadline" : 4pm Mauritius Time / 2pm South African Time

"Redemption Price" : The share price as at close of business on the

Redemption Day for daily valued funds and the subsequent available share price for funds with less

frequent valuations

"Shareholder" : Holder of Core Shares or of Cell Shares, as the case

may be

"Settlement Date" : The date specified in the relevant Fund Supplement

on which the receipt of monies for payment of subscription monies for subscription for Shares must be received or dispatch of monies for the

redemption of Shares must be made

Sub-Investment Manager : Any person duly authorised in the territory that they

operate to provide discretionary investment management services and duly appointed by the CIS

Manager in respect of a cell or cells

"Valuation Day" : Any Business Day or such business days denoted in

the relevant Fund Supplement

3. SUMMARY

The following information is presented as a summary of the principal terms of the Company and is qualified in its entirely by reference to other sections of this Prospectus and the Constitution.

Distribution Policy : The Company may issue distributing and

accumulating share classes in respect of cell shares in accordance with the Constitution and the

Prospectus

Investment Objectives : To provide either long term growth, the

preservation of capital or income to investors

investing into each Fund

Management Fee : As approved by the board of Directors of the

Company at the time of creation of each Fund

Minimum initial investment : In respect of each share class, such amount

determined by the Directors from time to time. This may be waived at the Directors' sole discretion

Performance Fee : As approved by the board of Directors of the

Company from time to time in respect of classes of

shares

Redemption : Cell Shares may be redeemed in accordance with

the Prospectus and the Constitution

Tax Considerations : The Company and each Fund is tax resident in

Mauritius. Investors are taxed in accordance with the tax regime, subject to any double taxation

agreement, in which they are tax resident

Temporary Suspension of

Redemptions

: Pursuant to the Constitution

Transfer of Cell Shares : Pursuant to the Constitution

Valuations : Daily or such valuation frequency denoted in the

relevant Fund Supplement

4. COMPANY INVESTMENT FACTS

Investment Objective

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve long-term capital appreciation for the holders of shares in each Fund, through the investment in a wide range of worldwide securities, collective investment scheme funds, both listed and unlisted, and in accordance with each Fund's approved investment strategy. The principal sphere of activity will be that of a diversified collective investment scheme. Certain Cells may however focus on either capital preservation or the generation of income in order to cater for the needs of different investors.

Investment Strategies

Investment strategies are adopted at the level of each individual Fund subject to the approval of the board of Directors of the Company, the Investment Manager and the FSC. Subsequent amendment to any investment strategy requires the approval of the board of Directors of the Company, the Investment Manager and the FSC. Each individual Fund shall adopt its own investment strategy and rules.

Investment Policy and Restrictions

These will be determined at the level of each individual Fund and will be subject to the relevant Mauritian laws and the laws of any country where such Fund is marketed.

Under the laws of Mauritius, each Fund may not purchase real estate property or a mortgage.

Each Fund shall not purchase a security for the purpose of exercising control or management of the issuer of that security.

Each Fund shall not purchase or sell derivatives or physical property or physical commodities, except within the limits established by the Commission and as amended in each Fund Supplement.

Each Fund shall not purchase an illiquid asset if, immediately after the purchase more than 10% of the net assets of the collective investment scheme, taken at market value at the time of the purchase, consists of illiquid assets.

Each Fund may not purchase a security, other than a debt security issued by the Government of Mauritius or the government of any other country, if immediately after such purchase, more than 5% of its net assets, taken at market value at the time of the purchase, would be invested into securities of that issuer.

Each Fund shall not purchase the security of an issuer where, immediately after the purchase, the Fund would hold more than 10% of a class of securities of that issuer.

Where any restriction is breached, whilst always considering shareholders' best interests, the Investment Manager must ensure that immediate corrective action is taken except where the breach is due to appreciations or depreciations, changes in the exchange rates, or by reason of the receipt of rights, bonuses, benefits in the nature of capital or by reason of any other action affecting every holder of that investment. However, the Investment Manager must have regard to the investment restrictions when considering changes in the investment portfolio of the Fund.

No restrictions shall apply to securities which are issued or guaranteed by a government, governmental agency or instrumentality of a member state of the European Union or Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ("OECD") or by any supra-national authority of which a member state of the European Union or OECD is a member. These investment limits apply to any investment at the time that investment is made.

Investment practices

The Fund shall not -

- (a) borrow money or provide for the creation of any encumbrance on its assets except in the two following situations -
 - (i) the transaction is a temporary measure to accommodate requests for the redemption of securities of the Fund while the Fund effects an orderly liquidation of its assets, and, after giving effect to the transaction, the outstanding amount of all borrowings of the Fund does not exceed 5% of the net assets of the Fund taken at market value at the time of the borrowing;
 - (ii) the encumbrance secures a claim for the fees and expenses of the custodian or a sub-custodian for services rendered in that capacity;
 - (b) subscribe securities offered by a company under formation;
 - (c) engage in the business of underwriting or marketing securities of any other issuer;
 - (d) lend money, securities or other assets;
 - (e) guarantee securities or obligations of another person;
 - (f) purchase or sell securities other than through market facilities where these securities are normally bought and sold unless the transaction price approximates the prevailing market price or is negotiated on an arm's length basis;
 - (g) purchase a security from, or sell a security to, one of the following persons:

- (i) the Investment Manager or the Custodian;
- (ii) an officer of the Investment Manager or the Custodian;
- (iii) an affiliate of a person referred to in subparagraphs (g) (i) and (ii), unless the purchase from or sale to the affiliate is carried out at arm's length.

The Company shall apply for exemption from the above investment restrictions and practices for any particular Fund where necessary.

Investment in other collective investment schemes

The Company intends to invest in other foreign collective investment schemes.

Each Fund shall not invest in aggregate more than 5% of its net asset value in the shares of other collective investment schemes.

Each Fund shall not acquire more than 10% of the shares of any single collective investment scheme.

Where any particular Fund departs from the above, it shall seek authorization from the FSC to do so.

Fees

Details on fees including Management Fees shall be provided for under the Fund Supplement.

Type of investors

Cell Shares are suitable to investors who have financial ability and willingness to accept the high risks and lack of liquidity inherent in an investment in a fund of this nature.

Fund Supplement

Each Fund will issue a supplement or similar document outlining the details regarding its specific investment objective, investment strategy and investment policies as well as any other important considerations.

Fund Administration

Each Fund will be administered in accordance with sound administration practice. In this respect the CIS Manager will comply with the administration, regulatory, valuation and pricing standards required for each of the markets where a Fund is being marketed as well as at all times with the Mauritian legislation and regulations. Details relating to market specific practices and regulatory compliance will be contained in each Fund Supplement.

Listing

Initially, the Cell Shares under the Prospectus will not be listed on the Stock Exchange of Mauritius ("SEM") or on any other exchange. The Fund may, at a later date, apply to the SEM or its successor or other exchanges to list the Shares issued under the Prospectus.

5. PLACEMENT INFORMATION

Introduction

Structure of the Company

The Company was duly incorporated in Mauritius on 27 October 2014 as a public limited company and was issued a Global Business Licence and authorised on 28 October 2014 by the FSC to operate as a Professional Collective Investment Scheme. Due to the amendment in the law as regards to the minimum holding for a Professional Collective Investment Scheme, the Company has applied for and is now qualified as a Retail Fund ("Global Scheme") under the Securities (Collective Investment Schemes and Closed End Funds) Regulations 2008 made under the Securities Act 2005 of Mauritius.

The Company is structured as a protected cell company under the Protected Cell Companies Act 1999, of Mauritius (PCC Act).

The Company and each Fund is subject to regulations by the FSC.

Under the PCC Act, a protected cell company may attribute its assets and liabilities to separate cells within the Company, or to the Company itself. A creditor's recourse is limited by law to those assets which are attributable to the capacity in which the Company has transacted with it. A Mauritius protected cell company is a single legal entity, and segregated cells have no independent legal personality.

The assets and liabilities of a protected cell company are divided between those which are cellular and those which are non-cellular. Cellular assets and liabilities are those which are attributable to particular cells. Non-cellular assets and liabilities are those belonging to, or owed by, a protected cell company in its own right and not attributable to any of its cells. The recourse available to a creditor of a protected cell company is limited to:

- (a) Non-cellular assets, if he has entered into a transaction with the Company in its own right; and
- (b) The cellular assets of the cell in respect of which he has transacted, if he has entered into a transaction attributable to a particular protected cell.

Minimum Holding

The minimum holding in the Fund at time of the initial investment for Cell Shares shall be determined by the Directors from time to time and included in the relevant Fund Supplement.

The Company will create and issue Cell Shares to prospective Applicants.

The minimum initial stated capital of each Cell shall be as determined under the relevant Fund Supplement and will be applied at the level of each Cell. The number of Cell Shares to be issued for each Cell shall depend on the amount of subscription monies received for such Cell Shares.

The minimum remittance amount for the Cell Shares from each investor shall be determined by the Directors from time to time.

The amount payable on the issue of any Cell Shares of the Company shall be payable in full on issue unless the Directors of the Company shall have decided to accept payment by instalments or calls, whereupon payment shall be made in accordance with such resolutions, and in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution of the Company. The Cellular Shareholder will not be entitled to the full benefit of the holding until such time as the capital is fully paid in. The non-payment of a call on the day appointed for payment thereof shall render the Cell Shares in respect of which the call was made liable to be forfeited.

The Cell Shares shall be issued on a continuous basis as from the date of incorporation of the Company.

The relevant characteristics of each Fund are listed in the Fund Supplement.

No Fund shall be created unless the prior approval of the FSC has been obtained.

The Cell Shares will be issued in registered form.

Cell Shares in each Fund shall be available for issue on any Business Day. The Cell Shares will be issued at a price equal to the closing share price on the day the subscription is made in respect of daily valued funds and the subsequent available share price for funds with less frequent valuations.

Financial Period

The Company's financial year end is 31 December in each year. Copies of unaudited semi-annual statements and audited annual statements of each Fund will be available to investors, on request, within ninety (90) calendar days from 30 June and 31 December of each financial year.

Directors

The board of Directors (the "Board") is currently made up of three directors as follows:

Name	Address	Date of Appointment
Shane Edward Peters	22 Pont Road, Bryanston,	27 October 2014
	Johannesburg 2191, South Africa	
Brendan Gallagher	C/o GlobalServe Management Limited,	07 October 2022
	Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel	
	Avenue, Cybercity Ebene, Mauritius	
Bashir Nabeebokus	C/o GlobalServe Management Limited,	07 October 2022
	Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel	
	Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius	

Directors Profile:

Shane Edward Peters - CA (SA)

Mr. Shane Edward Peters completed his articles at Coopers & Lybrand in Port Elizabeth following which he joined them as a manager of Global Risk Management Services in the United Kingdom. On his return to South Africa in 1999, he joined the m Cubed Group where he was appointed as a director, responsible for product development and implementation across various investment products within the group. Shane resigned from the m Cubed in 2003 to pursue the establishment of Global Administrators Group of Companies.

Brendan Gallagher – CFA (UK)

Brendan holds an Economics and Corporate Finance degree from the University of Kwa-Zulu Natal, is a CFA Society member with an Investment Management certificate from the CFA Society of the UK. He is currently a shareholder and director of a company holding a Collective Investment Scheme Manager and Investment Advisor (Unrestricted) company, issued by the Mauritius Financial Services Commission. He also provides consulting services to regulated and listed global financial services providers. Prior to this, Brendan was Head of Operations at Sanlam, where he started in August 2015 as a Global Relationship Manager, after having spent 14 years working in the offshore advisory space in Europe., covering positions at The Bank of New York Mellon, Insight Investment and Armstrong Investment Managers.

Bashir Nabeebokus - FCCA (UK)

Bashir is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK ("ACCA") and holds a BSc (Hons) Economics from the University of Mauritius. He is also a member of the Mauritius Institute of Professional Accountants, Mauritius Institute of Directors and former Panel Member of ACCA Mauritius office. In addition, he sits on the Appeal Committee of the Mauritius Institute of Professional Accountants. He reckons over 20 years of experience in the Mauritius global business sector with an enriched exposure in business development, marketing, fund/company set up, structuring and administration, company secretarial, accounting, net asset value calculation, international tax planning, compliance functions along with a strong client and people relationship management skills among others.

CIS Manager

The CIS Manager is a private company limited by shares duly incorporated on 16 October 2014 in the Republic of Mauritius. The Company holds a Global Business Licence (formerly known as Category 1 Global Business Licence), a CIS Manager Licence and an Investment Adviser (Unrestricted) Licence duly issued by the FSC. The registered office of the Company is at Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius. The CIS Manager is duly authorised to act as the CIS Manager of the Company as per the provisions of the Securities Act 2005 and the Financial Services Act 2007, as amended from time to time.

PIM Capital Fund Services has been appointed under the CIS Management Agreement to provide investment management and advisory services, distribution services and fund administration services to the Company which includes, but is not limited to, performing the calculation of the Net Asset Value and the Net Asset Value per Cell Share (unit price) and the maintenance and reporting of investor records.

The appointment of the CIS Manager may be terminated by either the Company or the CIS Manager by giving the other not less than 90 calendar days' notice in writing. Notwithstanding the above, the Company may appoint a new CIS Manager prior the termination of the appointment of the CIS Manager which shall be effective only after the effective date of the appointment of the new CIS Manager.

The CIS Manager shall be entitled, subject to its overall control at all times, to delegate its functions to third parties.

The board of directors of the Manager is composed of 3 members as follows:

Name	Address	Date of Appointment	
Stephan Hartzenberg	48 Rue de la Caravelle, Domaine de Mont	01 April 2020	
Stephan nartzenberg	Calme, Tamarin 90905, Mauritius	01 April 2020	
	C/o GlobalServe Management Limited,		
Raza Aly Sumser	Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel	07 October 2020	
	Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius		
	C/o GlobalServe Management Limited,		
Rouksaar Buctowar Ramjeet	Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel	07 October 2020	
	Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius		

Directors profile:

Stephan Hartzenberg - CFA

Mr. Stephan Hartzenberg graduated from the University of Cape Town with Business Science and Master's degrees (Cum Laude) in Commerce specializing in finance and investment management. He is a CFA charter holder. He began his career at RidgeCape Capital (Pty) Ltd as an associate in equity and fixed income derivatives. He then went on to head up product development at 10X Investments (Pty) Ltd and was appointed the managing director of 10X's unit trust business. He left 10X to join PIM Capital Fund Services (formerly known as PIM Capital Management) in Mauritius with a focus on scaling its operations globally.

Raza Aly Sumser

Mr. Raza Aly Sumser is a graduate from the University of Mauritius and holds a B.Sc (Hons) in Accounting. Aly has acquired experience at Executive Management level spread in various key sectors and industries. He has extensive exposure at both local and international levels within Groups, Conglomerates as well as the Mauritius Global Business industry spanned over 20 years.

He has been exposed to structuring, advisory, company set up, administration, secretarial, accounting, tax, compliance functions and has developed a strong client and people relationship management skills among others. Aly has worked as Accountant, Chief Accountant and Finance Manager. He has also participated in numerous seminars on above related fields.

Rouksaar Buctowar Ramjeet

Mrs. Rouksaar Buctowar Ramjeet is a graduate from the University of Mauritius and holds a Bachelor of Science Honours degree in Biotechnology. She began her career at IQ EQ Global (Mauritius) Limited further to which she moved to AXIS Fiduciary Ltd and other Management Companies. The past 7 years enabled her to acquire in depth knowledge in the corporate administration field, during which she became acquainted with best practices in company set up and structuring, company secretarial, administration and compliance matters, among others.

Custodian

The custodian for the Company is Peresec International Limited, a company duly incorporated in Guernsey with registered office address at Suite C3, Hirzel Court, Hirzel Street, GY1 2NN, St. Peter Port, Guernsey and is duly authorised to hold securities and other assets in its name on behalf of third parties.

The Company may elect to appoint, in relation to a particular Fund, another entity as Custodian, as the case may be, in the place of Peresec International Limited, in which event the other entity, subject to the approval of the FSC, shall act in such capacity in respect of that Fund as specified in the Fund Offer Document, as the case may be.

The Company shall avail of the custody services of Perese International Limited in respect of the investments and uninvested cash of the Company such that all securities or cash with Peresec International Limited and which securities form part of a Central Securities Depository, shall be held by Peresec International Limited on behalf of the Company and shall be registered in the name of Peresec International Limited or such other custodian as authorised above.

The assets of a Fund will be subject to the custody of the Custodian and will be held in a segregated account for the account of that Fund. The assets of a Fund held in the name of the Custodian shall not be at risk should the Custodian enter into liquidation although liquidation of the Custodian may delay subscriptions and redemptions, and management and administration of that Fund's investments may be adversely affected.

The appointment of the Custodian may be terminated by the Company by giving to the other not less than 30 days' notice in writing, pursuant to the laws in Mauritius, the Company must at all times have a custodian. The Company therefore has an obligation to appoint a new custodian prior the date of the resignation of the Custodian and the termination of the appointment of the Custodian shall not be effective until the new custodian is appointed.

The Custodian is entitled to be indemnified by the Company from and against any and all liabilities arising in connection with the performance of its duties as Custodian other than those liabilities arising from fraud, negligence or wilful default or that of any agent, delegate or subcustodian appointed by it. However, the Custodian will not be liable for the acts or omissions of any agent, delegate or sub-custodian (other than an associate of the Custodian) appointed by it in certain emerging markets notified to the Company nor shall the Custodian be liable for any loss suffered by the Company as a result of the liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency of any agent, delegate or sub-custodian (other than an associate of the Custodian) appointed by it unless the Custodian failed to exercise reasonable care in the selection of such third party.

Company Secretary

GlobalServe Management Limited is a boutique Management Company domiciled in Mauritius and is licensed and regulated by the Mauritius Financial Services Commission. It adopts a technology driven and client centric approach which helps to provide a highly personalised, value-added services including corporate structuring, outsourcing services, setup and administration of Funds, Trusts, Corporations, Holding Companies, Special Purpose Vehicles and High Net Worth Individual wealth solutions.

GlobalServe Management Limited has been appointed by the Company as the Company Secretary of the Company and to provide certain administrative services in accordance with the terms of the Administration Agreement.

The Company Secretary is entitled to be indemnified by the Company in respect of any loss or liability incurred by it in connection with the performance of its duties as Company Secretary except that caused by fraud, negligence or wilful default on the part of the General Administrator or its agents.

The appointment of the Company Secretary may be terminated by either the Company giving the other not less than 90 calendar days' notice in writing or as set out in the Administration Agreement.

Given the requirement for collective investment schemes to have at all times a Company Secretary, the Company will have to appoint a new Company Secretary prior the date of the resignation of the Company Secretary and the termination of the appointment of the Company Secretary will be effective after the new Company Secretary is appointed.

Auditor

The auditor shall be responsible for the audit of the accounts of the Company and shall prepare the audited financial statements of the Company and each Fund. The auditor is currently Moore (Mauritius) whose registered office is at 6th Floor, Newton Tower, Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis, Mauritius

Holders of the Core Shares

The Company has issued 100 Core Shares of USD 1.00 each in the Company. Such Core Shares are held by PIM Africa Limited, a company duly incorporated under the laws of Mauritius on 19 January 2016 and holder of a Global Business Licence issued by the FSC on 26 February 2016.

The rights associated with these Core Shares are described on page 22 under "Rights of Core Shares". The holders of the Core Shares will have no right to receive dividends or other distributions, nor any rights to participate and receive surplus funds upon liquidation other than a return of the nominal paid-up capital per share of USD 1.00.

Liquidation

In the event the Net Asset Value of any Fund at any time falls below USD 1 million, that Fund may be wound-up voluntarily by the Company.

The voluntary winding-up of a Fund will be carried out as expeditiously as possible in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Mauritius.

Investments in portfolio companies that have not been sold and cannot be realised for fair value on the termination of a Fund may be distributed to Shareholders in specie at the discretion of the liquidator of the Fund.

Share Issues

Cell Shares in a Fund may be issued on any Business Day.

The Issue Price for each Cell Share subscribed shall be the Net Asset Value per Cell Share (unit price) for the day the subscription is received for daily valued funds and the subsequent available share price for funds with less frequent valuations.

Subscription for Cell Shares of a Fund shall be made on a subscription form provided by the CIS Manager.

Cell Shares will be in registered form and share certificates will not be issued. A confirmation notice will be issued by the CIS Manager as soon as practicable to successful applicants on acceptance of their application and receipt in cleared funds of their application monies.

The Directors reserve the right to reject any application for Cell Shares in whole or in part. If any application is not accepted in whole or in part, the application monies (or where an application is accepted in part only) the balance thereof will be returned (without interest) in favour of the applicant (or, in the case of joint applicants, the first named) by telegraphic transfer at the discretion of the Directors and at the expense of the applicant.

Neither the Company nor the CIS Manager accepts any responsibility for any loss arising from the non-receipt by the Company of any application sent by electronic means.

Rights of the Core Shares

The rights attaching to the Core Shares are as follows: -

(a) Voting Rights

At any meeting of the Company each holder of Core Shares present is entitled to one vote on a show of hands and to one vote for each Core Share held. Votes may be given in person or by proxy.

(b) Dividends

The Core Shares carry no right to dividends.

(c) Liquidation

In the event of liquidation, the Core Shares are entitled to return of the nominal capital paid-up on them, after return of the nominal amounts paid up on Cell Shares. The Core Shares will not be entitled to any surplus remaining thereafter.

Rights of the Cell Shares

The rights and restrictions attaching to the Cell Shares are as follows:

(a) Voting Rights

Cell Shares carry no voting rights.

(b) Dividends

The Company may issue distributing and accumulating share classes. The Company will not declare dividends and distributions will not be made in respect of accumulating share classes; and income and other profits will be accumulated and reinvested. Dividends declared on distributing share classes will be paid out of the total income of the applicable share class net of any relevant expenses. Dividends will normally be declared on the shares of distributing share classes with a view to being paid either monthly, quarterly or semi-annual frequencies. The details regarding the distribution frequencies of various share classes shall be disclosed to investors and prospective investors.

(c) Liquidation

The Cell Shares carry a right to receive the net asset value per share (unit price) for each share held on liquidation date. Any liquidation costs shall be accrued and included in the net asset value per share calculation.

Transfer of Cell Shares

Shares may be transferred in accordance with the Constitution and by using such form or forms as may from time to time be prescribed by the Directors signed by the transferor and the transferee. Copies of the prescribed form(s) of transfer for the time being applicable will be available upon request from the CIS Manager. Forms of transfer will be required for all transfers of beneficial ownership interests in Cell Shares.

All transfers and other documents of title relating to any Cell Shares must be lodged for registration with the CIS Manager. The Directors may decline to register any transfer of Cell Shares if the transfer to, or holding of Cell Shares by, a transferee of the Cell Shares to be transferred would, in the conclusive determination of the Directors or of the relevant CIS Manager, cause or be likely to cause a pecuniary, tax, legal or regulatory disadvantage to the relevant Fund or any other Shareholder in any jurisdiction.

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Directors or the Investment Manager may from time to time determine.

No transfer resulting in the breach of any applicable law or regulation in respect of the minimum shareholding(s) in the Company shall be registered.

Net Asset Valuation for each Fund

- (a) This will be calculated daily or such frequency as denoted in the relevant Fund Supplement by the CIS Manager using the closing prices for the assets and markets in which the fund invests. The valuation will include all income and expense accruals. Each Fund will be valued in United States Dollars.
- (b) The Net Asset Value shall be determined on every Valuation Day. The Net Asset Value shall be based on the Gross Asset Value as defined in section (d) less gross liabilities as defined in section (f) less expenses which would consist of charges or claims of any and every kind and nature, fixed, accrued, unmatured or contingent, including without limitation, the estimated accrued expenses of the CIS Manager and its delegates, the Company Secretary and the Custodian and any provisions or charges for any or all of the foregoing, whether for taxes, expenses, contingencies or otherwise.
- (c) The assets of the Fund shall be deemed to include:
 - (i) all cash in hand, on loan or on deposit, or on call including any interest accrued thereon;
 - (ii) all bills, demand notes, promissory notes and accounts receivable;
 - (iii) all bonds, time notes, shares, stocks, debentures, debenture stock, subscription rights, warrants, options and other investments and securities owned or contracted for by the Company other than rights and securities issued by it;
 - (iv) all stock and cash dividends and cash distributions to be received by the Fund and not yet received by it but declared payable to stockholders of record on a date on or before the day as of which the Net Asset Value is being determined;
 - (v) all interest accrued on any interest-bearing securities owned by the Company except to the extent that the same is included or reflected in the principal value of such security;
 - (vi) all other Investments;
 - (vii) all expenses relating to the Fund in so far as the same have not been written off, except for management and performance fees; and
 - (viii) all other assets of every kind and nature including prepaid expenses as valued and defined from time to time by the Board.
- (d) The Gross Asset Value shall be valued as follows:
 - (i) securities traded on a stock exchange or other regulated market are to be valued generally at the latest closing price quoted on the relevant exchange or market on or before the day preceding the relevant Valuation Day;
 - (ii) unlisted equity securities will be valued initially at cost and thereafter with any reduction or increase in value (as the case may be) as the Board shall in its absolute discretion deem appropriate in the light of the circumstances;
 - (iii) unlisted securities (other than equities) for which there is an ascertainable market value are to be valued generally at the last known price dealt on the

- market on which the securities are traded on or before the day preceding the relevant Valuation Day;
- (iv) unlisted securities (other than equities) for which there is no ascertainable market value will be valued at cost plus interest (if any) accrued from purchase to (but excluding) the relevant Valuation Day plus or minus the premium or discount (if any) from par value written off over the life of the security;
- (v) any value otherwise than in US dollars shall be converted into US dollars at the market rate:
- (vi) the value of any cash in hand or on deposit, bills and demand notes and accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, cash dividends and interest accrued and not yet received shall be deemed to be the full amount thereof, unless it is unlikely to be paid or received in full, in which case the value thereof shall be arrived at after making such deduction or discount as the Board may consider appropriate to reflect the true value thereof;
- (vii) the value of preference shares or other security in any preference share trust, mutual fund, investment corporation, or other similar investment vehicle or collective investment scheme shall be derived from the last prices published by the managers thereof on or before the day preceding the relevant Valuation Day;
- (viii) notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may, in its absolute discretion, permit some other method of valuation to be used if they consider that such valuation better reflects the fair value; and
- (ix) for the purpose of valuing the Fund's assets as aforesaid the Board may rely upon the opinions of any persons who appear to them to be competent to value assets of the Fund by reason of any appropriate professional qualification or of experience of any relevant market.
- (e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, where at the time of any valuation any asset of the Company has been realized or contracted to be realized there shall be included in the assets of the Company in place of such asset the net amount receivable by the Fund in respect hereof provided that if such amount receivable is not payable until some future time after the time of any valuation the CIS Manager may make such allowance as it considers appropriate.
- (f) The gross liabilities of the Fund shall be deemed to include all its liabilities and such provisions and allowances for contingencies (including tax) payable by the Company but not liabilities represented by Cell Shares in the Fund. In determining the amount of such liabilities, the CIS Manager may calculate any liabilities of a regular or recurring nature on an estimated figure for yearly or other periods in advance and accrue the same in equal proportions over any such period.
- (g) The Net Asset Value per Cell Share shall be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value by the number of Cell Shares in issue.

(h) Any calculations made pursuant to the Constitution shall be made by or on behalf of the Board and shall (except in the case of manifest error) be binding on all persons.

Subscription

Eligible Investors

Each potential investor must represent and warrant to the Company that, amongst other things, such investor is able to acquire Cell Shares without violating applicable Laws or the laws of the country of residence (if different) or if a body corporate; the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated or established of such investor. The Company will not knowingly offer or sell Cell Shares to any potential investor to whom such offer, or sale would be unlawful, or to any potential investor who, by investing in the Company, would commit a breach of the laws relating to the prevention of money laundering in his jurisdiction of such investor or in Mauritius.

Pursuant to the laws relating to the prevention of money laundering, the Company must ascertain the identity of the potential investor by requiring documents as listed in the "**Application Documents**". If the said Application Documents have been channelled through a financial intermediary (other than the Distributor), that person shall properly certify the identity as well as the proof of address of the applicant by completing an Eligible Introducer Certificate or in any other manner prescribed by laws.

Such information shall be collected for compliance reasons only and shall not be disclosed to unauthorized persons. In case of refusal by a potential investor to provide the documents required, the application for subscription will not be accepted unless the potential investor has good reasons and produces any such other documentation that will satisfy the customer due diligence standards of the Company.

The Company shall not be bound to register more than four persons as joint holders of any Share. Shares may be transferred to persons under the age of 18.

The Company shall request the Customer Due Diligence documents on every investor.

Minimum Subscription and Minimum Holding

Minimum subscription

The minimum initial and subsequent subscriptions for investors shall be determined by the Directors from time to time and may be different for different classes of shares.

Minimum holding

The Board may from time to time determine the minimum amount in value or number of any holding of Cell Shares.

If a redemption results in a Shareholder's total holding, falling below the minimum amount in value or number the Shareholder's entire holding may be compulsorily redeemed at the Board's discretion.

Procedure for Application

Subscriptions for Cell Shares should be made on the Application Documents which should be received and accepted by the CIS Manager by 2.00p.m. South African time (4.00pm Mauritius time) in order to receive value for that dealing day at the next available Valuation (the "Subscription Notice Day"). If the Application documents are received on a day which is not a Business Day, the Subscription Notice Day shall be the next Business Day.

Settlement may be made by bank transfers into the Company's client monies account by the relevant Settlement Date.

Cleared subscription monies of an applicant must be deposited and reflect in the client monies account on the Settlement Date for processing and allocation of units for the relevant Dealing Day.

If either the Application Documents are received after 2.00pm South African time (4.00pm Mauritius time) on the Dealing Day or cleared subscription monies of an applicant are received after the Settlement Date, the investment shall be deferred to the next available Dealing Day at the Subscription Price applicable on that Dealing Day.

Applications for subscriptions shall be irrevocable. Applicants shall not therefore be entitled to withdraw subscription once accepted by the CIS Manager.

If settled monies are not received by the required settlement date, trades will not be cancelled, but redeemed on the next available dealing date. The Directors reserve the right to claim any difference between subscription and redemption proceeds from the defaulting investor.

Depending on the rules of each Fund, applicants may be informed in writing by the CIS Manager once their applications have been accepted and their subscription monies received in the relevant subscription monies bank account held by the Company.

Application monies that are received prior to the issue of the Cell Shares or the relevant Settlement Date will not bear any interest for the benefit of the investor.

The Company reserves the right to reject any application, in which event subscription monies received by the CIS Manager will be returned to the applicant without interest. Especially, the Company may reject an application for Cell Shares if that will cause a Fund to exceed any limit for subscription of Cell Shares fixed by the Board from time to time.

A sales commission may be payable by the investors to any Broker or Investment Advisor that introduces investors to the Company.

Procedure in case of winding up of the Company

In the event that the Company is wound up before applicants have been issued Cell Shares and before the subscription monies of an applicant have been used by the Company, the claims of such applicant against the Company shall rank *pari passu* with the claims of other unsecured creditors.

If the Company is wound up before the applicant has been issued Cell Shares but after the subscription monies have been used by the Company for investment purposes, the subscription

process shall continue, and the sole entitlement of such applicants shall be to the redemption values of Cell Shares issued or deemed to have been issued. The Distribution procedure is provided for in the Constitution of the Company, the Shareholders ranking first on the Distribution list will receive their money on a pro rata basis according to the number of Cell Shares that they have been issued posterior to the subscription process.

Redemption

Redemptions at the option of the Shareholders

Cell Shares may be redeemed at the option of the Shareholders in accordance with the Constitution provided that such redemption shall not be made during any restricted redemption period except as for such circumstances as detailed hereunder.

Therefore, a first-in first out approach shall be adopted whereby those Cell Shares purchased earliest shall be deemed to have been redeemed first.

All Cell Shares shall be fully paid up before they can be redeemed. The Investment Manager shall not give any credit to potential investors for the subscription of Cell Shares.

Redemption Price

Cell Shares will be redeemed in the currency denomination of each Fund, being US dollars at the redemption price (the "Redemption Price") calculated in respect of the Dealing Day at which the redemption is sought. The Redemption Price for each Cell Share is calculated in accordance with the same formulae used to calculate the subscription price.

Redemption Proceeds

The redemption proceeds will be paid in the currency denomination of each Fund and share class by way of bank transfers. Redemption proceeds shall be paid, subject to the Company satisfying the solvency test as defined under the Companies Act 2001 of Mauritius, as amended from time to time and there being sufficient liquidity in the Fund on the relevant Settlement Date upon which the redemption price applicable at the relevant Valuation Day has been determined. As from the date on which a Shareholder's Cell Share are redeemed, the former Shareholder shall rank as an unsecured creditor of the Company for the sum payable as redemption proceeds with respect to that Fund until such time as the redemption proceeds is debited from the redemption bank account held by the Company.

Redemption Procedures

Subject to the provisions of the Constitution, the CIS Manager shall, on receipt of a redemption request by a Shareholder, redeem all or part of the Cell Shares subject to any minimum holding as determined by the Board from time to time.

Redemption requests to redeem Cell Shares must be received and accepted by the CIS Manager by 2.00 p.m. South African time (4.00 p.m. Mauritius time). If the redemption request is received on a day which is not a Business Day; the Redemption Day shall be the next Business Day. Redemption requests received after the specified 2.00pm South African time (4.00pm Mauritius time) cut off above shall be deferred until the following Dealing Day and the subsequent the Redemption Price applicable.

A redemption request will not be treated as valid unless it is in respect of Cell Shares for which the Subscription Price has been fully paid.

Redemption requests will be irrevocable except in the event of a suspension of redemption.

The Company's obligation to redeem Cell Shares is subject to postponement in the event that requests for redemptions received in respect of any one Dealing Day represents more than 5% of the issued Cell Shares of the relevant Fund or to the extent that there is insufficient liquidity to pay the redemption proceeds within one business day of the redemption request being received. In such an event, the Company shall not be under the obligation to redeem Cell Shares representing more than 5% of the Cell Shares in issue in respect of the relevant Fund or other amount should there be insufficient liquidity as mentioned above and, the Company may reduce all but not some of such redemption requests pro rata so that they cover no more than the relevant percentage of the Cell Shares issued or to the extent that such Fund's liquidity allows.

Any part of a redemption request to which remains unexecuted by reason of the exercise of this power by the Company shall be treated as if the request had been made in respect of the next Dealing Day and all following Dealing Days (in relation to which the Company has the same power) until the original request has been satisfied in full. Where requests for redemption are postponed as envisaged above, the CIS Manager will cause to be liquidated a sufficient portion of the relevant Fund's assets in order that the Company's obligation to pay the redemption proceeds is met in a reasonable time frame.

Compulsory Redemption

If the Board in their absolute discretion consider that any Cell Shares that have been acquired or owned or held directly or indirectly by any Shareholder in circumstances which, in their opinion, might result in the Company incurring any liability to taxation or suffering any other pecuniary disadvantage which the Company might not otherwise have incurred, the Board may require the redemption or transfer of such Shares.

To require the redemption or transfer of Cell Shares in the Company, the Board will serve on the Shareholder a notice requiring him to transfer his Cell Shares to a Shareholder eligible to hold the same or to give a redemption request in respect of such Cell Shares. If any such Shareholder upon whom such a notice is served as aforesaid does not, within 30 days after such notice, transfer such Cell Shares or give a redemption request in respect thereof, he shall be deemed forthwith upon the expiration of such 30-day period to have given a redemption request in respect of all his Cell Shares and the Board shall be entitled to appoint any person to sign on his behalf such documents as may be required for the purposes of the redemption.

If any Cell Shares are compulsorily redeemed pursuant to this Section, the Board shall deposit in a separate bank account the redemption proceeds. Upon such deposit, the Shareholder whose Cell Shares have been so redeemed shall have no interest in or claim against the Company or its assets except the right to receive the redemption proceeds deposited (without interest) upon surrender of any document(s) that are required for the purposes of redemption or settlement.

(a) Redemption due to ineligibility

Cell Shares in the Company may not be offered, sold or held by or for the benefit of any Shareholder in any jurisdiction:

- (i) in which authorization for such offer or solicitation is required but is not obtained; or
- (ii) in which the Shareholder making such offer or solicitation is not qualified under the laws and regulations of that country to do so; or
- (iii) to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation.

Further ownership restrictions may become necessary to reflect changes in the applicable Laws and regulations of any other jurisdiction whose laws may be applicable to the Company.

The Broker, in the first instance, and, by default, the Investment Manager have the exclusive right to determine conclusively whether any Shareholder or entity is an ineligible investor and any such determination may be made at any time. If it is determined that Cell Shares are beneficially owned by a Shareholder who is not eligible, either alone or in conjunction with any other Shareholder, the Company will, redeem such Cell Shares held by that Shareholder alone or in conjunction with any other Shareholder in the Funds at the relevant Redemption Price.

(b) Redemption in the interests of Shareholders

Where, as a result of any enactment, legislation or otherwise, the Board consider it advisable or prudent in the interests of Shareholders to redeem the Cell Shares as a result of any enactment, legislation or otherwise, the Company may, in any such case, at its option, cause all Cell Shares then outstanding to be redeemed, by giving 4 weeks' notice to all Shareholders. The redemption will be effected on such Dealing Day as specified in such notice.

(c) Redemption for Closure

The Board may decide to close a Fund if such solution is in the best interest of existing Shareholders in the Company. If such a situation occurs, the Board may compulsorily redeem or transfer the outstanding Cell Shares in the Fund. To require such redemption or transfer, the Board will serve on the Shareholders a notice requiring them to transfer their Cell Shares into another Fund or to give redemption requests in respect of such Cell Shares. If the notified Shareholders do not, within 30 days after such notice, transfer their Cell Shares or provide redemption requests in respect thereof, the Shareholders shall be deemed forthwith upon the expiration of such 30 days period to have given proper redemption requests in respect of all their Cell Shares and the Board shall be entitled to appoint any Person to sign on their behalf such documents as may be required for the purposes of such redemptions.

As provided for above, the redemption proceeds of such compulsory redemption will be retained in the redemption account of the Company until the Shareholders concerned have surrendered such documents required for the purposes of redemption or settlement.

Temporary Suspension of Redemption

The Board or any nominated person are empowered, subject to all relevant regulatory approval, including the approval of the FSC, to temporarily suspend the issue or redemption of Cell Shares at any time for a period not exceeding 30 days and may do so if they have good and sufficient reason to believe that it is in the interests of the Shareholders. This may include that occurrence of any of the following events:

- (i) when one or more stock exchanges or other markets which provide the basis for valuing any assets of the Fund are closed other than for or during holidays, or if dealings therein are restricted or suspended or where trading is restricted or suspended in respect of securities forming a substantial part of the Fund's assets;
- (ii) when, as a result of political, economic, military or monetary events or any circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the Company, disposal of the assets of the Fund is not reasonably practicable without this being seriously detrimental to the interests of Shareholders, or if, in the opinion of the Board, a fair price cannot be calculated for the assets of the Fund;
- (iii) in the case of a breakdown of the means of communication normally used for the valuing of any asset of the Fund or if for any reason the value of any asset of the Fund which is material in relation to the Net Asset Value may not be determined as rapidly and accurately as required; or
- (iv) if, as a result of exchange restrictions or other restrictions affecting the transfer of funds, transactions on behalf of the Fund are rendered impracticable, or if purchases, sales, deposits and withdrawals of any assets of the Fund cannot be effected at the normal rates of exchange, as determined by the Board.
- (v) No issue or redemption of Cell Shares in the Fund will take place during any period when the calculation of the Net Asset Value is suspended. Payment of redemption proceeds to such Shareholders whose Cell Shares have been redeemed may be withheld prior to such suspension until after the suspension is lifted, such right to be exercised in circumstances where the Board believe that to make such payment during the period of suspension would materially and adversely affect and prejudice the interests of the remaining Shareholders in the Fund affected by the suspension.

Subscription and Redemption Prices

The subscription price and redemption price for Cell Shares will not differ in value and will be available after midday Mauritius time the day after Valuation Day.

Anti-money Laundering

To ensure compliance with the Financial Intelligence and Anti-Money Laundering Act of 2002 ("FIAMLA"), the Financial Intelligence and Anti-Money Laundering Regulations 2018 ("FIAML Regulations 2018") and the AML/CFT Handbook issued by the FSC, Shareholders of the Fund will be required to provide certain information / documents for the purpose of verifying the identity of the shareholders and the source of funds and obtain confirmation that the application monies do not represent, directly or indirectly, the proceeds of any crime. The extent of the request for information may be reduced where such shareholder is a regulated financial services business

based in Mauritius or in an equivalent jurisdiction (i.e. subject to the supervision of a public authority and to equivalent anti-money laundering legislation) or in the case of public companies listed on recognized stock / investment exchanges.

Shareholders should note specifically that additional information as may be necessary to verify the identity of the investor and the owner of the account to which the redemption proceeds will be paid may be requested. Redemption proceeds will not be paid to a third-party account without the identities of those third parties being confirmed in accordance with the Company's compliance manual.

Each shareholder acknowledges that the Fund and / or the CIS Manager shall be held harmless against loss arising as a result of a failure to process an application for shares or redemption request if such information and documentation as requested by the Fund and / or the CIS Manager has not been provided by such shareholder.

6. FEES AND EXPENSES

Performance Fees

The Company may, in future, charge performance fees to the investor based on the growth of the Net Asset Value per Cell Share, and the details regarding the performance fees shall be disclosed to investors and prospective investors Such performance fees shall be paid to the CIS Manager or its delegate. Details of the performance fees in relation to each Fund shall be set out in the relevant Fund Supplement.

Management Fees

The CIS Manager or its delegates may charge management fees and other fees. Details of the management fees in relation to each Fund shall be set out in the relevant Fund Supplement.

General Administration Fees

For performing and supervising the performance of corporate and administrative services necessary for the operation and administration of the Company, a General Administration fee will be levied respect of each Fund to cover the fees of the Company Secretary and other miscellaneous operating costs of the Company. This fee will be paid monthly in arrears at such rate as may be agreed between CIS Manager and each Fund from time to time and shall be set out in the relevant Fund Supplement.

The Company Secretary will also be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses agreed to in advance with the Fund.

Administration Fees

The CIS Manager will also receive a fee for the administration of each Fund. This fee will be paid monthly in arrears at such rate as may be agreed between the CIS Manager and the Company from time to time.

The CIS Manager will also be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses agreed to in

advance with the General Administrator and the Company.

Custodian

For providing the services as a custodian to the Fund, the Custodian will receive a fee in respect of each Fund.

This fee will be paid monthly in arrears at such rate as may be agreed between the Custodian and the Company from time to time shall be set-out in the relevant Fund Supplement.

Directors

The Directors' fees will be determined by ordinary resolution of the holders of the Core Shares. The present Directors have agreed to waive their Directors' fees.

In the event that any Directors' fees are proposed to be paid by the Company, the Company will notify the holders of Cell Shares at least 3 months before the date on which the fees are to be paid.

Other Fees Relevant to Administering and Managing the Scheme

Fees relevant to managing and administering the scheme and each fund will be disclosed in each Fund Offer Document.

7. RISK FACTORS

The value of each Fund of the Company is subject to market fluctuations and to the risks inherent in all investments and markets. As a result, the price of Cell Shares may go down as well as up.

General Risk Factors

Prospective investors should be aware that the value of the Cell Shares and the return derived from them can fluctuate. The same applies to the securities in which a Fund will invest. In addition, there can be no assurance that a Fund will achieve its investment objectives. The past performance of the Investment Manager or of the principals of the Investment Manager may not be construed as an indication of the future results of an investment in a Fund.

Political & Economic Risks

The Net Asset Value of the Fund may be affected by uncertainties such as political or diplomatic developments, social and religious instability, changes in government policies, taxation and interest rates and other political and economic developments in law or regulations and, in particular, the risk of, and change in, legislation relating to the level of foreign ownership.

Repatriation of Capital, Dividends, Interest and Other Income Risks

It may not be possible for the Company to repatriate capital, dividends, interest and other income from emerging market countries, or it may require government consent to do so. A Fund could be adversely affected by the introduction of the requirement for any such consent, or delays in or the failure to grant any such consent, for the repatriation of funds or by any official intervention

affecting the process of settlement of transactions which may in turn affect the repatriation of funds. Economic or political conditions could lead to the revocation or variation of consent granted prior to investment being made in any particular country or to the imposition of new restrictions.

Settlement, Clearing and Registration Risks

Some of the countries in which a Fund may invest may be undergoing rapid expansion. There can be no guarantee of the operation or performance of settlement, clearing and registration of transactions in some of these markets. Where organised securities markets and banking and telecommunications systems are underdeveloped, concerns inevitably arise in relation to settlement, clearing and registration of transactions in securities where these are acquired other than as direct investments.

Furthermore, due to the local postal and banking systems in many less developed markets, no guarantee can be given that all entitlements attaching to quoted and over-the-counter traded securities acquired by a sub-fund, including those related to dividends, can be realised. Some markets currently dictate that monies for settlement be received by a local broker a number of days in advance of settlement, and that assets are not transferred until a number of days after settlement. This exposes the assets in question to risks arising from acts, omissions, and solvency of the broker and counterparty risk for that period of time.

Market Risk

Financial markets are increasingly more volatile. Wide swings in market prices that have been a feature of smaller and less developed markets are also becoming common in major financial markets. In many instances, market prices defy rational analysis or expectation for prolonged periods of time and are influenced by movements of large funds as a result of short-term factors, counter-speculative measures or other reasons. Market volatility of large enough magnitude can sometimes weaken what is deemed to be a sound fundamental basis for investing in a particular market. Investment expectations may therefore fail to be realised in such instances too.

Investment in Publicly Traded Securities

Some of the markets in which a Fund may invest are emerging markets, and as a consequence tend to be substantially smaller, less liquid, less regulated and more volatile than major securities markets, such as those in more developed economics. The limited liquidity of securities in some emerging countries could also affect the ability of a Fund to acquire or dispose of securities at the price and at the time it wishes to do so.

Inflation

Some of the countries in the world in which a Fund may invest have experienced extremely high rates of inflation for many years. Inflation and rapid fluctuations in inflation rates have had and may continue to have negative effects on the economies and securities markets of certain emerging countries. Depending on rates of inflation in countries in which a Fund invests, this factor could affect the performance of a Fund.

Financial Disclosure

Substantially less information may be available about some issuers in other parts of the world as compared to issuers in developed countries. Accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards in some countries are not necessarily equivalent to standards applicable in developed countries. As a result, the disclosure of certain material information may not be made, and less information may be available than would be the case if the investments of a Fund were, for example, restricted to investments in developed countries.

Counterparty Risk

The Company will transact most of the investments made by its Funds through financial institutions including but not limited to brokers, dealers and banks. All purchases and sales of securities will carry counterparty risks until the transactions have settled. All financing transactions such as borrowing, or lending of funds or securities will carry counterparty risks until such borrowing or lending has terminated and the relevant collateral is returned. All deposits of securities or cash with a custodian, bank or financial institution will carry counterparty risk. Upon default by a counterparty, a Fund may be forced to unwind certain transactions and that Fund may encounter delays and difficulties with respect to court procedures in seeking recovery of its assets.

Exchange Control and Currency Risk

The assets of a Fund may be invested in securities denominated in currencies other than US Dollars and any income received by that Fund from those investments will be received in those currencies, some of which may fall in value against the US Dollar. The Net Asset Value will be computed in US Dollars and there is therefore a currency exchange risk which may affect the value of the Cell Shares to the extent that a Fund makes such investments. A Fund may from time to time invest its assets in countries which have exchange control restrictions, and that Fund may encounter difficulties or delay in relation to the receipt of its divestments due to such controls existing in various countries.

Geographic Focus Risks

The concentration of investments in a specific geographical region involves a higher degree of regional risk, which is the risk that the entire region will be adversely affected by factors such as political instability, financial crises, pandemic, epidemic and natural disasters. Heavy exposure to the stock markets of a specific geographical region exposes a Fund to increased market risk as compared to more geographically diversified international funds.

Leverage

As part of its investment strategies, a Fund may utilise leverage such as trading on margin. Leverage has the effect of magnifying changes in the value of the portfolio and creates opportunities for greater total returns. However, at times of adverse price movements, the portfolio may incur substantial losses. Furthermore, if the assets of the portfolio pledged to secure the borrowings decline in value, a Fund may have to liquidate some or all of its assets to meet the collateral requirements at times and at prices that are disadvantageous to that Fund.

Reliance on the Manager

Holders of Cell Shares have no right to participate in the management of the Company or of a particular Fund or to make any decisions with respect to the investments to be made by any Fund. Consequently, they must rely on the Manager with respect to the management and investment decisions. In the event that the Manager cannot manage the Company, which might occur, for example, upon bankruptcy or dissolution, the Company may have to be dissolved. In such case, it might not be possible to realize the full value of the investments of each Fund.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

The Investment Manager has agreed that it will not, nor will any of its connected persons, transact with a Fund, as beneficial owner on the sale or purchase of investments to or from a Fund, except on a basis approved by the Custodian from time to time, or without the consent of the Directors and the Custodian otherwise transact with a Fund as principal.

The Custodian or its connected persons may contract with or enter into any financial banking or other transaction with the Company or any Shareholder or any company or body, any of the assets of which are held by or for the account of a Fund and the Custodian or its connected persons shall not be liable to account to any person for any profits or benefits made or derived by them in connection with any such transaction. The Custodian or any of its connected persons may not as principal sell investments to a Fund or purchase investments from a Fund.

The services of the Investment Manager, Custodian and their connected persons are not exclusive, and each such party is free to render similar services to others so long as the services to be performed by it are not impaired thereby and to retain for its own use and benefit all fees of monies payable thereby.

In the event of any conflict of interest arising as a result of such dealing by the Custodian or the Investment Manager in the Fund, the Investment Manager and the Custodian, following prior consultation with each other, will resolve any such conflict in a just and equitable manner as they deem fit.

The Investment Manager and the Custodian will conduct all transactions for the Fund on an arm's length basis.

Associates of the Custodian may be engaged to offer financial, banking and brokerage services to the Fund, but these services will be provided on an arm's length basis.

8. TAXATION

The following tax summary is of a general nature only and is based on current law and practice and is therefore subject to changes therein, and is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice to any particular subscriber. Prospective subscribers of Cell Shares should consult their own tax advisers as to the potential tax consequences of the acquisition, holding or disposition of the Cell Shares under the laws of the countries of their citizenship, residence or domicile.

Taxation in Mauritius

The taxation of the Company in Mauritius is governed by the provisions of the Income Tax Act 1995.

The Company holds a Global Business Licence and is subject to corporate tax at the rate of 15 per cent on its chargeable income.

Until 30 June 2021, a company holding a Category 1 Global Business Licence issued prior to 16 October 2017 is entitled to claim a credit for the greater of the actual foreign tax suffered or a deemed foreign tax credit equivalent to 80% of the Mauritius tax payable, resulting in an effective tax rate of 3%.

An 80% partial exemption is now available for certain types of income if prescribed conditions are fulfilled. The income exemption will be granted to all companies on the following income subject to complying to conditions relating to the substance of their activities:

- foreign source dividends provided the dividend has not been allowed as deduction in the country of source.
- interest derived by a company other than a bank.
- profit attributable to a permanent establishment which a resident company has in a foreign company.
- income derived by a collective investment scheme (CIS), closed end fund, CIS manager, CIS administrator, Investment Advisor or asset manager licensed or approved by the Financial Services Commission.
- income derived from overseas by a company engaged in ship and aircraft leasing.
- income derived by a company from reinsurance and reinsurance brokering activities.
- income derived by a company from leasing and provision of international fibre capacity.
- income derived by a company from the sale financing arrangement, asset management of aircraft and its spare parts and aviation advisory services related thereto.
- interest derived by a person from money lent through a Peer-to-Peer Lending platform.

Foreign tax credit will not be allowed where a company has claimed the 80% partial exemption.

The 80% partial exemption on dividend will be granted, provided the Company complies with its filing obligations under the Companies Act or the Financial Services Act and has adequate resources for holding and managing share participations.

Where the Company receives interest, the 80% partial exemption will be granted, provided the Company carries out its core income generating activities in Mauritius; employs directly or indirectly an adequate number of suitably qualified persons to conduct its core income generating activities in Mauritius; and incurs a minimum expenditure proportionate to its level of activities. As per Income Tax Regulations 1996, "the 'core income generating activities' includes agreeing funding terms, setting the terms and duration of any financing, monitoring and revising any agreements, and managing any risks."

The Company is authorised by the Financial Services Commission as a collective investment scheme under the Securities Act 2005 and is further categorised as a Global Scheme under the Securities (Collective Investment Schemes and Close-end Funds) Regulations 2008 under the Securities Act 2005.

The 80% partial exemption of income applicable to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS), Closed-End Fund, CIS manager, CIS administrator, Investment Advisor or Asset Manager shall be granted provided the Company satisfies the conditions relating to the substance of its activities as required by the Financial Services Commission established under the Financial Services Act.

The conditions to benefit from the partial exemption are that the Company should carry out its core income generating activities in Mauritius, employ directly or indirectly, an adequate number of suitably qualified persons to conduct its core income generating activities and incur a minimum expenditure proportionate to its level of activities.

The core income generating activities of a Collective Investment Scheme is defined as investments of funds in portfolio of securities, or other financial assets, real property or non-financial assets; diversification of risks; redemption on the request of the holder.

Any gains derived by a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) on the realisation of any investments of the scheme shall be deemed not to be income derived by the scheme provided that at least 70% of the gains is not distributed as income to the participants in the scheme; is appropriated to meet realized losses; or is applied towards a capital purpose only.

Any distribution to a participant in the scheme out of the net income derived by the Collective Investment Schemes shall be deemed to be a dividend to a participant.

Further, the Company will be exempted from income tax in Mauritius on profits or gains arising from disposition of investments held by the Company. There is no withholding tax payable in Mauritius in respect of payments of dividends to Investors or in respect of redemption or exchange of shares.

Management and control in Mauritius

The Company holds a tax residence certificate from the Mauritius Revenue Authority. The certificate is renewable annually subject to the directors and the secretary providing an undertaking to the tax authorities as to certain prescribed matters to demonstrate that the Company is centrally managed and controlled in Mauritius.

The Mauritius Revenue Authority will issue a tax residence certificate to the Company upon application made to the Financial Services Commission along with an undertaking that the Company is and will be centrally managed and controlled in Mauritius. In this respect, the Company must:

- (a) have, at all times, at least two (2) resident directors of appropriate calibre and able to exercise independence of mind and judgment;
- (b) maintain, at all times, its principal bank account in Mauritius;
- (c) keep and maintain, at all times, its accounting records at a registered office in Mauritius;
- (d) prepare its statutory financial statements and cause its financial statements to be audited in Mauritius; and
- (e) provide for meetings of directors to include at least two (2) directors from Mauritius.

In addition to the above, the FSC has devised additional requirements when determining whether a GBL company is 'managed and controlled' in Mauritius by amending section 3 of chapter 4 of the Guide to Global Business (the "Guide").

GBL entities are expected to comply with the new 'economic substance' requirement as from 01 January 2019, by meeting at least one of the following criteria:

- (a) it has or shall have office premises in Mauritius; or
- (b) it employs or shall employ on a full-time basis at administrative/technical level, at least one person who shall be resident in Mauritius; or
- (c) its constitution contains a clause whereby all disputes arising out of the constitution shall be resolved by way of arbitration in Mauritius; or
- (d) it holds or is expected to hold within the next twelve months, assets (excluding cash held in bank account or shares/interests in another GBL1 entity) which are worth at least USD 100,000 in Mauritius; or
- (e) its shares are listed on a securities exchange licensed by the FSC; or
- (f) it has or is expected to have a yearly expenditure in Mauritius which can be reasonably expected from any similar corporation which is controlled and managed from Mauritius.

Withholding Taxes

In the investment jurisdiction where the underlying investment is made, withholding taxes may be withheld before being received by the Fund.

Taxation in South Africa

South African investors are taxed on their worldwide income or capital gains. In the event income is capitalised and not distributed and the fund is not considered a controlled foreign company, income earned by the fund will not be taxable in South Africa. In the event the investor is invested in a distributing share class, the resultant distribution will be taxable. Should an investor redeem any Cell Shares, this could result in a capital gain in the hands of the investor. In certain circumstances (i.e. should the investor deemed to be trading in his Cell Shares) the gain could be deemed to be fully taxable in the hands of the investor.

A prospective investor in any fund of the company should consult such investor's own tax advisers as to the taxes applicable to the acquisition, holding or disposition of cell shares by such investor.

9. GENERAL INFORMATION

Reports, Accounts and Statements

The General Administrator shall prepare monthly accounts for the Company and each Fund and will ensure the Company and each Fund is audited on an annual basis.

Investor statements showing the number of Cell Shares issued, the Fund to which the Cell Shares relate and the Net Asset Value Per Cell Share will be available to investors by means of a log in facility into the CIS Manager's computer system.

The annual report, annual accounts and auditor's report on the annual accounts will be prepared and sent to the Investors within 3 months of the financial year-end (or such other period as may be permitted by the FSC).

Queries and Complaints

For all enquiries and complaints about the Fund, please contact:

- (a) the CIS Manager at Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius;
- (b) the Company Secretary at Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius.

Documents

- (a) The following documents shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, the Prospectus:
 - (i) any supplement to the Prospectus circulated by the Company from time to time in respect of a Fund;
 - (ii) the Constitution: and
 - (iii) all subscription forms in connection with the subscription of Cell Shares.
- (b) The above documents shall, where appropriate, modify and supersede the contents of this Prospectus. The Company will provide copies of the documents incorporated by reference, without any charge.
- (c) In the event of a material adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company which is not reflected in the Prospectus, the Company will prepare an amended and restated Prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent issue of Cell Shares. If the terms of the present offering are modified or amended in a manner which would make the Prospectus, as supplemented, inaccurate or misleading, the Company will prepare an amended and restated Prospectus. Any such amended and restated Prospectus shall be deemed to have been substituted for the previous Prospectus from the date of its issue.
- (d) Copies of all documentation incorporated in the Prospectus by reference are available at Ground Floor, Ebene House, 33 Hotel Avenue, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius.

10. PRIVACY NOTICE

In the normal course of its formation, operation and dissolution, the Fund will collect and disclose certain private information about its Investors. Personal financial information about the Investors, such as their names, addresses, social security numbers, assets and incomes, will be obtained from the Application Documents and other documents. Other personal information about the Investors, such as capital account balances, account data and information about their

participation in other investments, will be obtained in the course of transactions between the Investors and the Fund or its affiliates.

Except as described below, this private information will be disclosed only as permitted by applicable law to the Company's affiliates and service providers, including the Fund's accountants, attorneys, custodian, broker-dealers, custodians, transfer agents, and any other parties whose services are necessary or convenient to the formation, operation or dissolution of the Fund. Any party receiving private information about the Investors pursuant to the preceding sentence will be authorized to use such information only to perform the services required and as permitted by applicable law. No party receiving an Investor's personal information will be authorized to use or share that information for any other purpose.

With respect to personnel of the Fund and its affiliates, access to private information about the Investors will be restricted to individuals who require such access to provide services to the Fund and the Investors. The Fund will maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to guard private information about its Investors.

In all events, the Fund may disclose Investor information: (x) to other Investors as required or permitted under the Constitution; and (y) as otherwise required by applicable law.

The foregoing privacy notice reflects a privacy policy that has been adopted by the Board of Directors. It may be updated from time to time upon notice to the Investors.

11. DATA PROTECTION

The Company, the CIS Manager and the Company Secretary are subject to the Data Protection Act 2017 of Mauritius, as may be amended from time to time, and are required to observe certain data protection principles when processing and handling personal data of living individuals. Personal data of or relating to investors will be collected and processed for the purpose of investors' subscriptions to the Company and the operation and administration of the Company, in furtherance of the business objective of the Company and other purposes pursuant to law or the constitutive documents of the Company.

In the normal course of its formation, operation and dissolution, the Company will collect and disclose certain private information about its Investors. Personal financial information about the Investors, such as their names, addresses, social security numbers, assets and incomes, will be obtained from Subscription Agreements and other documents. Other personal information about the Investors, such as capital account balances, account data and information about their participation in other investments, will be obtained in the course of transactions between the Investors and the Company or its affiliates.

Except as described below, this private information will be disclosed only as permitted by applicable law to the Company's affiliates and service providers, including the Company's accountants, attorneys, broker-dealers, custodians, transfer agents, and any other parties whose services are necessary or convenient to the formation, operation or dissolution of the Company. Any party receiving private information about the Investors pursuant to the preceding sentence will be authorized to use such information only to perform the services required and as permitted by applicable law. No party receiving an Investor's personal information will be authorized to use or share that information for any other purpose.

With respect to personnel of the Company and its affiliates, access to private information about the Investors will be restricted to individuals who require such access to provide services to the Company and the Investors. The Company will maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to guard private information about its Investors.

In all events, the Company may disclose Investor information: (x) to other Investors as required or permitted under the Constitution; and (y) as otherwise required by applicable law.

The foregoing privacy notice reflects a privacy policy that has been adopted by the Board of Directors. It may be updated from time to time upon notice to the Investors.

12. DISCLOSURE BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors:

- Accept the responsibility for the contents of the Prospectus and that to the best of their knowledge and belief, after making all reasonable enquiries, this Prospectus complies with the Securities Act 2005, the Securities (Collective Investment Scheme and Closed-End Fund) Regulations 2008 and applicable FSC Rules; and
- State to the best of their knowledge and belief, after making all reasonable enquiries, that the information contained in the Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and that the Prospectus makes no material omission likely to affect the import of such information.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company on this [] day of [] 2024.
DIRECTOR	CTOD	
DIRECTOR DIRE	JUK	

APPENDIX FOR U.S. PERSONS

It is anticipated that the offering and sale of Cell Shares will be exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 and the various state securities laws and that the Company will not be registered as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

There will not be any public market for the Cell Shares. Investors are prohibited from transferring Cell Shares without the consent of the Company in its sole discretion and U.S. federal and state securities laws also restrict transfers of the shares.

Prospective purchasers should be aware that there are certain risks associated with investing in the Company due, among other things, to the fact that the Company has no history of operations and will make investments having certain risk characteristics.

The Cell Shares have not been registered under the securities laws of any country and may not be sold or otherwise transferred without the prior consent of the Company. The distribution of this Prospectus and/or the offer and sale of the shares in certain jurisdictions or to certain investors may be restricted or prohibited by law. Cell Shares that are acquired by any person, or in any transaction, in violation of applicable law or the articles, as determined by the manager in their discretion, may be compulsorily redeemed.

Neither delivery of this Prospectus nor anything stated herein should be taken to imply that any information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof. This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any interests in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer in such jurisdiction.

During the course of this offering and prior to sale, each offeree of cell shares and its offeree representative(s), if any, are invited to question the representatives of the company concerning the terms and conditions of the offering and to obtain additional information, to the extent the representatives of the Company has such information or can acquire it without unreasonable expense or effort, concerning this offering or to verify the accuracy of information contained in this Prospectus. Subject to the foregoing, any representation or information not contained herein must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company since no person has been authorized to make any such representations or to provide any such information.

Prospective investors should not construe the contents of this Prospectus as legal, investment, tax or other advice. Each prospective investor must rely upon his or her own representatives, including his or her own legal counsel and accountants, as to legal, economic, tax and related aspects of the investment described herein and as to its suitability for such investor.

The Fund and the Managers are entities organized outside the United States. Certain of the directors and executive officers of the Fund and the Manager will be residents of South Africa or Mauritius and all or a significant portion of the assets of such directors and executive officers will be located in South Africa. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process upon such directors or executive officers outside South Africa or Mauritius, or to realize judgments of courts outside South Africa or Mauritius predicated upon civil liabilities of such directors or executive officers under the laws of jurisdictions other than South Africa or Mauritius, including the U.S. federal securities laws.